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June 10, 2022  
 
Mr. Billy Nolen 
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800 Independence Avenue, SW 
Washington, DC 20591-0001 

 

 
RE: Request for Reconsideration 
 U.S. – E.U. Bilateral Agreement and Parts Documentation Requirements 
  
Dear Acting Administrator Nolen, 
On June 1, 2022, the Aeronautical Repair Station Association (ARSA) received the Federal 
Aviation Administration’s (FAA) undated response (Attachment One) to our inquiries 
(Attachments Two and Three) regarding ARSA’s E100 form as an acceptable means of 
compliance with 14 CFR part 43 (a basis for the bilateral agreement with the European Union) 
and the U.S.-EU Maintenance Annex Guidance (MAG) Special Condition on parts documentation. 
For the reasons stated herein, if the agency will not reconsider its position on the acceptability of 
ARSA’s E100 form, we request the FAA revert to its previous position (Attachment 5) that an 
export occurs when a part is shipped to a U.S. repair station with European Union Aviation Safety 
Agency (EASA) approval and not when the part is approved for return to service. We request a 
written answer as soon as practicable and a meeting with you, the acting associate administrator 
for aviation safety and the executive directors of the Flight Standards and Aircraft Certification 
Services. 
ARSA was advised via a Sept. 28, 2016 letter from Tim Shaver (Attachment Four), then manager 
of the Flight Standards Service’s Aircraft Maintenance Division, that the division had reviewed the 
E100 and, 

…determined that it is an acceptable method of compliance with Title 14 Code of Federal 
Regulations (14 CFR) sections 43.13(a) and 43.9 when inspecting new parts received 
without the documentation required by the FAA-EASA Maintenance Annex Guidance. We 
have also determined that ARSA Form E100 is consistent with the guidance provided to 
Aviation Safety Inspectors in Notice 8900.380. 

The agency’s most recent response from Robert Carty (Attachment One) on behalf of Flight 
Standards Service Executive Director David Boulter withdrew the Shaver letter’s acceptability 
determination, citing as reasons that EASA has not accepted the E100 as proof of traceability for 
new parts and that the approval provided by Mr. Shaver was intended to be transitional, not 
permanent. 
The agency’s failure to stand up for its own rules is disappointing. The E100 results in a safety 
outcome fully consistent with FAA’s regulatory system, which EASA deemed equivalent to its own 
when entering into the underlying bilateral aviation safety agreement. It is up to the FAA to 
interpret its own rules; acceding to a foreign regulator’s demand for paperwork with no additional 
safety benefit does a major disservice to the hundreds of U.S. facilities with EASA approval (which 
are regulated directly by the FAA, not EASA). 
We also note that EASA’s position on parts documentation apparently contradicts the way the 
European agency handles prototype parts exported from the United States. We have been 
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advised by European-based ARSA members (who also hold EASA part 21-subpart J design 
organization approvals) that EASA does not require that a second FAA Form 8130-3 be issued 
by a U.S. parts supplier after the underlying supplemental type certificate (STC) has been 
approved by EASA. This is because the U.S. regulatory system allows for the installation of 
prototype parts after the design data (including the data for the prototype part) has been approved 
without issuing a second Form 8130-3. Therefore, EASA has adjusted its requirements to suit 
European companies when they contract with U.S. parts suppliers. We submit that it is equally 
impractical to prevent U.S. repair stations from using the E100 process. Seeing no safety issue, 
we do not understand why the FAA is acceding to a foreign authority’s demand to impose a non-
tariff barrier to trade against U.S. companies. 
We do not agree with the statement in Mr. Boulter’s recent letter that FAA’s acceptance of the 
E100 procedure was intended “to provide temporary relief for parts already on distributor shelves, 
and to expire when a revision to the U.S./EU MAG was completed.” The FAA is conflating two 
separate issues. There is an exception in the MAG that grandfathered certain new parts received 
without the requisite documentation from the PAH. It clearly stated that it applied to parts received 
in inventory prior to a date certain. On the other hand, Mr. Shaver's letter addresses a repair 
station’s privilege to inspect such parts under part 43. Since the rule has not changed, it belies 
the assertion that the FAA’s acceptance of the E100 was temporary. 
If the acceptance was not based upon a repair station’s privileges under the U.S. regulations, that 
fact should have been stated. Indeed, the agency has had more than half a decade to clarify its 
basis and intent; it only reversed itself under pressure from EASA. As the FAA’s most recent letter 
pointed out, “[t]he MAG is now on revision 8.” Had the agency stated an expiration date in the 
Shaver letter or withdrawn it after the adoption of the new MAG changes, U.S. industry would not 
have relied on it for the last six years and invested time and money implementing related 
procedures. 
Even more concerning is that the letter contradicts previous agency statements about when an 
export occurs. The agency’s undated letter stated that: 

Except for standard parts, there are no further exemptions from the requirement to having 
an authorized release certificate when a part is moving from one authority’s jurisdiction to 
another’s. This transfer occurs each time a part/component is released using Form 8130-
3 with a dual release statement. (Emphasis added.) 

This statement is in direct conflict with the June 26, 2013 letter from Dorenda Baker, then director 
of FAA’s Aircraft Certification Service, and John Allen, then director of the Flight Standards 
Service (Attachment 5), who wrote that: 

It is the FAA’s position that every new part be (sic) exported to the EU system (e.g., to an 
EASA part 145 repair station) must comply with the above stated requirement: specifically 
that it include an FAA Form 8130-3 per the MAG and TIP. This includes parts exported 
from an FAA production approval holder, a U.S. distributor, or a U.S. part 145 repair 
station. (Emphasis added.) 

The recent Carty letter also contradicts statements made at ARSA’s Annual Conference on March 
10, 2022 by Certification Branch Manager Dan Elgas, who said that: 

We have a regulation that says if you’re exporting a part, it must be exported with a 
[8130-3]. If a production approval holder is exporting a part, and that means changing 
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jurisdictions, so if it ends up at an EASA repair station, they’ve exported that part and 
they should be issuing a [8130-3] with it … We certainly would enforce it if we find a 
violation of the regulation.1 

The industry is now faced with two contradictory FAA positions. The agency has said, via the 
Baker/Allen letter (Attachment 5) and Mr. Elgas’s statements at the ARSA Conference, that the 
export occurs when a U.S. PAH sends a part to an EASA approved U.S. repair station; in direct 
conflict is the recent correspondence stating an export occurs when the approval for return to 
service (i.e., dual release) is issued. 
If the agency cannot enforce EASA’s new parts documentation requirements against the PAH 
when that part is shipped to a U.S. repair station for installation in maintenance subject to the 
MAG, it should not have agreed to EASA’s paperwork demands. The E100 process addressed 
the gap between the regulatory systems as it falls squarely within a repair station’s privilege to 
inspect any part it intends to install in a maintenance work scope. 
The agency has thus simultaneously eliminated the two most practical avenues for a U.S. repair 
station to obtain an FAA Form 8130-3. On the one hand, the agency will no longer allow repair 
stations to exercise privileges granted by the agency under parts 43 and 145; on the other hand, 
U.S. PAHs are not obligated to provide the EASA-required documentation when sending parts to 
those repair stations. This puts U.S. repair stations in an untenable position. The only other 
alternative is to contract with an FAA Designated Airworthiness Representative (DAR) to issue 
the FAA Form 8130-3. However, we question whether there are enough designees to support the 
myriad forms needed. Further, we question whether a DAR-issued FAA Form 8130-3 would even 
be acceptable to EASA given that the process the DAR would use to issue the form is the same 
as the E100’s instructions and the form would not, as EASA is demanding, originate from the 
PAH. 
In sum, the agency has refused to stand behind its determination that the E100 form is an 
acceptable means of compliance with its own rules; and, the FAA has changed its determination 
about when an export occurs. If the agency will not accept the E100, we request it withdraw its 
statement that an export occurs when the release for return to service is issued and confirm, in 
accordance with its 2013 letter (Attachment 5), that export takes place when the part is shipped 
by the PAH to an EASA-approved repair station, wherever it is located. ARSA has no objection 
to including a requirement that the purchase order explicitly state that the article will be installed 
in maintenance subject to the MAG. Doing so will make it more likely that the PAHs will provide 
the necessary documentation when requested. 
We also repeat the request made to Mr. Elgas in our letter of April 4, 2022 (Attachment 6) to 
confirm the agency could enforce 14 CFR section 21.335(a) against any person who transfers a 
new article and/or product to a domestic repair station with EASA approval under the above 
circumstances. 
  

 
1 A recording of the discussions concerning this issue during the “Opening Salvo” global regulators panel at ARSA’s 
Annual Conference on March 11, 2022 is at https://vimeo.com/694475767/dd6b04711d. 

https://vimeo.com/694475767/dd6b04711d
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Thank you for your consideration. We look forward to your swift response and resolution of these 
matters. 
Your Servant, 

 
Sarah MacLeod 
Executive Director 
M: 703.785.6605 
E: sarah.macleod@arsa.org 
 
 
Attachments: 1 Letter to ARSA from David Boulter signed by Robert Carty (no date) 
 2 April 7, 2022 letter to Administrator Nolen from ARSA (“Request for 

Verification”)—with attachments removed 
 3 May 3, 2022 letter to Acting Administrator Nolen from ARSA (“Second Request 

for Verification”) 
 4 September 28, 2016 letter from Timothy Shaver to ARSA 
 5 July 26, 2013 letter from Dorenda Baker and John Allen to General Aviation 

Manufacturers Association 
 6 April 4, 2022 letter to Dan Elgas from ARSA (“Export and Enforcement under 

the E.U.-U.S. Bilateral Agreement”) 
 
cc: David H. Boulter, Acting Associate Administrator for Aviation 

Safety 
david.boulter@faa.gov 

 Jodi Baker, Deputy Associate Administrator for Aviation Safety jodi.l.baker@faa.gov 
 Larry Fields, Executive Director, Flight Standards Service lawrence.fields@faa.gov 
 Robert Carty, Deputy Executive Director, Flight Standards Service robert.carty@faa.gov 
 Lirio Liu, Executive Director, Aircraft Certification Service lirio.liu@faa.gov 

mailto:sarah.macleod@arsa.org
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